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Kaese Mill
Accident
Private 1868

Kaese Mill, constructed in 1868 by Henry August Kaese a
skilled miller from Germany, is a 2-story frame water-powered
grist mill located north of Accident on Bear Creek.

it is powered by a 20-horsepower iron overshot wheel
manufactured by the Fitz Water Wheel Co,, Hanover, PA. The wheel
is 16 feet in diameter and is located on the south elevation.

Kaese Mill is significant as the only water powered mill still
in operation in Garrett County.
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1. Name

historic Kaese Mill

and’or common Kaese Mill

2. Location

street & number Fish Hatchery Road n/anot for publication

city, town Accident _X_vicinity of congressional district Sixth

state Maryland code 24 county Garrett code 023

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

___ district ___ public ____ occupied ____ agriculture —___ museum

_X_building(s) _¥_ private _X_ unoccupied _X commercial ___ park

— structure ___ both —__ work in progress — educational —__ private residence

—__ site Public Acquisition Accessible ____ entertainment ____ religious

—__ object ____inprocess —_yes: restricted —__ government ____ scientific

___ being considered ____yes: unrestricted —— industrial ___transportation
X not applicable X no military other:

4. Owner of Property

name Honorable Clifford and Mrs. Nellie Friend

street & number Route 2, Box 105

city, town Accident —X_ vicinity of state Maryland 21520

5. Location of Legal Description

counhouse,';eg-lstry of deeds, etc. Garrett County Courthouse

street & number Third and Alder Streets

city, town _ . Oakland state Maryland 21550

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Coal Basin Historic Sites Survey
title Maryland Historical Trust has this property been determined elegible? ___yes X no
date 1982 —__federal X __ state county ____local

depository for survey records

Maryland Historical Trust, 21 State Circle

city, town

Annapolis

state

Maryland 21401




» 7. Description - G-TT-E-024

Condition Check one Check one
— excellent ____deteriorated _ X unaltered 2 original site

~—~ X _good —__ruins ___ altered ___moved date  n/a
—__ fair —___ unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

Number of Resources

Contributing ‘oncontributing Number of previously listed

1 0 buildings National Register properties: 0
0 0 sites Original . . .

0 0 structures r;glna .and hlstquc functloqsl

0 0 objects and uses: commercial, industria

1 0 Total

DESCRIPTION SUMMARY:

Kaese Mill, constructed in 1868, is a two and one half story frame water
powered grist mill located on the south side of Fish Hatchery Road near Accident
in Garrett County, Maryland. It is powered by a twenty horsepower iron overshot
wheel manufactured by the Fitz Water Wheel Company of Hanover, Pennsylvania. The
wheel is sixteen feet in diameter and is located on the south elevation. The
mill rests on a concrete and stone foundation and is three bays wide and four
bays deep. Entrances are located on the north and west elevations and the
windows all have 6/6 sash. The walls are covered with weatherboard siding and the
steeply pitched gable roof with standing seam metal. A mill race rumns from Bear
Creek, east of the mill, under Fish Hatchery Road and directs water into a wooden
flume which begins three hundred feet east of the mill. The flume was once supported
by a wooden frame; this has been replaced with a fieldstone base. The mill, still
occasionally used by the present owner to grind buckwheat, retains nearly all of
its late nineteenth and early twentieth century equipment, including the French-
made stone burrs with straight furrows, steel rollers, sifters, bolting reels,
grain hoppers and a balance scale. In fact the Kaese Mill is virtually unchanged
either on the exterior or in the interior and is in good condition and still
functional. Only those parts of the machinery or exterior which were worn out
were repaired or replaced.

For General Description see Continuation Sheet No. 1
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

Kaese Mill, built by the German immigrant miller Henry August Kaese in 1868,
is a two and one half story frame water-powered grist mill located on Bear Creek,
north of Accident in Garrett County, Maryland. The mill stands on the south side
of Fish Hatchery Road near the junction with Collier Road in a rural and heavily
wooded area.

The mill rests on a concrete and stone foundation which replaces the original
foundation damaged by a W.P.A. road crew in the 1930s. The two and one half story
frame building is three bays wide and four bays deep and faces north on Fish
Hatchery Road. The walls are covered with unpainted weatherboard siding and the
steeply pitched gable roof with standing seam metal. The windows all have 6/6
sash, although a few have been boarded up or knocked out. There is a large central
opening on each story of the front facade through which grain and other supplies
were hoisted by the mechanism located at the top gable. Entrances are located on
the north and west elevations.

Kaese Mill is powered by a twenty horsepower iron overshot wheel manufactured
by the Fitz Water Wheel Company of Hanover, Pennsylvania. This rim-leverage wheel,
now kept uncovered, is a c. 1900 replacement of the original wooden wheel installed
in 1868. The original cogs, wheels and mechanisms of the wheel were all wooden,
but have been replaced by iron ones.

A mill race runs from Bear Creek, east of the mill, under Fish Hatchery Road
and directs water into a wooden flume which begins three hundred feet east of the
mill. The head race was originally supported on two wooden posts at the wheel
but later had to be replaced on dry layed stones. The head is created naturally
by the flow and direction of the Creek - no dam was necessary. There was no

race built and the water simply flowed through a shallow ditch back out to the
creek.

The mill itself is still operational, although now run only occasionally by
the present owner to grind buckwheat. Much of the late nineteenth and early
twentieth century machinery and milling equipment still remains, including the
French-made stone burrs with straight furrows, steel roller will sifters, a gyrator,
a bolting ‘reel, grain chutes, hoppers and a balance scale. Several of the pieces
of machihery still have the manufacturers' names on them. For example, the
gyrator has the words "This Gyrator built by the Wolf Co., Chambersburg, Pa.,
Patented December 21, 1857," inscribed on its base and there is an i

: nscription
American Bolting Reel" on the bolter.

The machinery is in good to excellent condition and has been only slightly
altered since the turn of the 20th century. There has been some damage to the
— more fragile portions, however, i.e. squirrels have eaten some of the canvas
chutes and the Japanese silk screening in the sifter is torn on some of the plates.
The large rubber belts now used are replacements of the older worn out leather ones.

See Continuation Sheet No. 2
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION (continued)

The lumber used in the construction of Kaese Mill was sawn at a small
water-powered saw mill located near the original mill pond approximately halfway

between the present mill and Bear Creek. No above-ground remains of the saw
are still standing, however.




8. Significance G-II-B-024

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
—— prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ___ landscape architecture____ religion
——1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic —— conservation — law — science
——1500-1599 ____ agriculture ——_ economics ____ literature — sculpture
——1600-1699 X _ architecture —— education ___ military ___ social/
—1700-1799 ___ ant X _engineering —_ music humanitarian
—X 1800-1899 X __ commerce —— exploration’settiement ___ philosophy — theater
—1900- ____ communications X_ industry - politics/government ___ transportation
—__invention —— other (specify)
Specific dates 1868 Builder/Architect Henry August Kaese, Sr.

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

Applicable Criteria: A, C
Applicable Exceptions: none
Level of Significance for Evaluation: state

SIGNIFICANCE SUMMARY:

The Kaese Mill near Accident in Garrett County is the only fully operational
water powered grist mill in Maryland.

It is unaltered, in good operating condition
and displays a virtual museum of mill machinery inside. It was built in 1868 by
Henry August Kaese, Sr., an immigrant miller from Germany who settled in Garrett
County shortly after the Civil War. Kaese Mill, like many of the other flour and
grist mills which once stood throughout Garrett County, was once an important
economic and trading center. Many of these mills were also centers of social and
political 1life in their immediate areas by virtue of the fact that they served
as U. S. Post Offices. Kaese Mill alternated this honor for many years with the
Engles Mill which once stood nearby, depending on which political party was in
power. The mill is still operated by descendants of Henry Kaese.

For History and Supporting documentation, see Continuation Sheet No. 3
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HISTORY AND SUPPORT:

The Kaese Mill near Accident in Garrett County is significant as the only
fully operational water-powered grist mill in Maryland as well as one of.th?
oldest mills of any kind in the state. Although there are several functioning
grist mills still standing in Maryland, such as Wye Mill in Talbot County,
Stanton's Mill in Garrett County, Rockland Mills in Baltimore County and others,
these have either been converted to other forms of power or are presently used.as
museums. Kaese Mill is therefore an important example of a commercial enterprise
once very common in Garrett County and Maryland.

Probably the earliest mill built in what is now Garrett County was
Vrooman's (Froman's) Mill which was erected near the mouth of Mill Run in 1774.
Vrooman's Mill, the first of two flour mills, eight sawmills, and one woolen
factory to be built in the nineteenth century on Mill Run, featured an overshot
water wheel and a mechanical blower for winnowing. Gristmills were built
throughout the nineteenth century in such rural communities as Swanton, Grantsville
and Selbysport and formed the basis of such towns as Kitzmiller and Oakland, the
future county seat. Of these nearly two dozen mills, only the Kaese Mill and
Stanton's Mill near Grantsville (listed in the National Register) still stand.

Early nineteenth century Garrett County gristmills served vital functions
in self-subsistent agrarian frontier communities., The traffic they generated
often provided virtually the only contact isolated farmers had with the outside
world and were sometimes constructed through an agreement with small groups of
farmers who considered the convenient siting of a mill a practical necessity.
Due to the scarcity of money the millers of the early nineteenth century in
Garrett County customarily retained a portion of grain from each bushel brought
in as a standard "toll" for their services. Mills were therefore an important
part of the barter economy of early nineteenth century Garrett County.

Mills were also centers of community activities. Not only were they
meeting places for the exchange of news, but they also served as area trading
posts for bartered goods. For many years, Kaese's Mill and nearby Engléds Mill
competed both commercially and politically. Both communities served as U. S.
Post Offices, but the location changed depending on which party was in office:

Kaese Mill when the Democrats were in power and Engle's Mill when the
Republicans held office.

Henry August Kaese, the founder of Kaese Mill, was an immigrant German miller
who moved Fo.w?stern Maryland with his wife in the 1850s. Before settling in the
Accident Vlicinity, he operated grist mills in West Virginia and at Borden Shaft,

in Al}egany County, Maryland., For a few years he worked at the aforementioned
Engle's Mill before building hi

See Continuation Sheet No., 4
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HISTORY AND SUPPORT (continued)

A sawmill was first built on the flood plain just below the mill to supply
the lumber for the construction of the grist mill., While the grist mill was
under construction Kaese lived in a small house which now stands in back of the
present owner's home. When the gristmill was completed a larger frame house was
constructed about where the driveway now exists, When the present owners built
their home they razed the old house.

Although the mill is now only operated infrequently by Senator Friend, Kaese
Mill in its heyday once employed between five and six men on two shifts working
both day and night. Unlike most other gristmills still standing in the state,
it is privately owned and not operated as a museum.

10. VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION:

Boundaries are depicted on the attached plat, and are defined by Fish Hatchery
Road on the north and east, Maryland Route 219 on the west, and Bear Creek on
the south.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION:

The nominated property, approximately 7 acres, encompasses the resource
within its immediate setting and maintains its historic orientation to Bear
Creek and Fish Hatchery Road.
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‘9. Major Bibliog. aphical References G-IT-B-024

McGrain, John W., Jr. The Molinography of Maryland. 1971. Unpublished
manuscript on file at the Maryland Historical Trust.
- Schlosnagle, Stephen. Garrett County: A History of Maryland's Tableland. (Parson's
W. Va.: McClain Printing Co., 1978).

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property _Approximately 7 acres
Quldrangle name Accident ’ Maryland Quadrang'e scale 1 :24 3 000
UMT References

A1,7) |6]4,6]6,1,0 [4;3]9,0]0,3;0] ® 17| [6)ss6]o,5,0] |4i3l910]018)0]
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Nonhlng

c|1,7] |6]4,516,8;0] |4,3{9,0]3,7,0] ol e b b by g

N T T N . llllllJlJJlL Lo

el J Ll bbb Lagld L IR I I A AT I W A

Verbal boundary description and justification

See Continuation Sheet No. 4.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state n/a code county code
~tate code county code

11. Form Prepared By |

nameftitie Geoffrey Henry with contributions by Donna Ware

organization Maryland Historical Trust date 1984

street & number 21 State Circle telephone  (301) 269-2438

city or town Annapolis state Maryland 21401

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaijuated significance of this property within the state is:
—___ nationai X _ state —_locai

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Pubiic Law 89~
665), | hereby nominate this property for inciusion in the Nationai Register and certify that it has been evaiuated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage COnserv?tion and Recreation Service.

8-75%

State Historic Preservation Ofticer signature

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER

GPO 938 833
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Mr, Paul T. Calderwood Sevtember 29,1967
Garrett County Historicel Socliety

PoOo Box 26

Deer Park, Maryland

Dear YMr. Calderwood,

You were very kind to call on us at Annanolis on Thursday to brirg

in the revort on the Kaese rill in Accident. we also apvreciate

your request th~t the Maryland Historical Trust coneider steps

to nreserve this unicue reliec of an earlier wvay of life,

Ve deenly annreci-te the asesistance you have given us in recording
othar Gnr-ett County landmerke and look forward to a very vpleasgant

relationshin with your Society and its members,

Yery truly yours,

Orlandos Ridout IV
Drector

OR/ap
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close to town, Here we dispatched Hetrick and Kaupp to reconnoiter
the town and to find out more definitely of their real whereabouts. Our
spies soon returned with the information that the two villians had gone
out to stay over night at okd Captuin West’s place, with all of their
plunder, By this time the rain was pouring down in torrents, so that
we were drenched to our skins, and found it difficult to keep our locks

and powder dry, We hurriedly agreed to abandon pursuit until the
next day,

Euarly the next morning we hastened to Accident, and soon learned
that another party of gentlenten were after them, The Glotfelty boys
of the Glades, and their neighibors, routed them early at the West farm
giving them a hot chase und a close shave for their lives. ,

It seains the old captain hiad pluyed o trick on his obnoxious guests
by hidipg their clothes and their nccouterments away in another room:
loeking the door, so they hud to flee minus these essentials, Eacl of the

nHo

rile Vol 2 Ap X (Lt ooy

Summen 1950 )
two had barely time to get a horse out of the stable before the Glot-
felty boys were right on them, but each of the rebels rode away at full
speed, cutting their bundles loose, the boys firing at them without effect.

But the boys were in close pursuit, and soon one of the rebels,
tagging behind, abandoned his horse and disappeared in the woods. The
other, having old Mr. Specht’s fast horse, soon out-distanced the boys,
and when he found that he had gained sufficiently on them, as he
happened to come past the old Mr, McHenry place he compelted an
old Negro to give him his best suit of clothes, hat and gun. Then, meun-
dering all day ahead of the boys, he pulled up for the night at the old
stone tavern (Tomlinson?) on the pike. His pursuers thought it expedi-
ent to stop with some farmer a few miles on the other side until the
next morning, thinking they could capture their game more easily. But
lte was on to their job, and before they had arrived he had taken his
departure in the direction of Salisbury. They were successful in cap-
turing their man that forenoon in P, S. Hays store. He was handeuffed
and taken to Grantsville, and from thence sent to Cumberland and
todged in jail. But subsequently a band of rebel raiders broke into the
city, looting it and Dreaking open the prison. The prisoner made his
escape.

We afterwards learned that these two chaps were deserters from
the 54th. Pennsylvania Volunteers, but whether they were ever cap-
turect or court martialed I do not know.

Well, the boys felt none the worse over the excitement and fun,
All, no doubt, would have fett better if the fellows could have had their
just punishment, but the farmers were all too glad to get their horses
back, and the merchants, too, having most of their goods returned. So,
on the whole, it was something to think of and tatk about for some tine
afterward. I shall not soon forget that night's experience. On our re-
turn home, when we got to the Bear Creek hills, we discharged our
guns. There was a mighty roar and thunder down through the glen,
Soon every house in the neighborhood had a light shining—-—ull won-
dering what would happen next,

“Mingled with doubts, hopes and fears
With aching hearts and burning tears;
But few are left of the Noble Ten

That guardued the road through Bear Creek Glen.”
Footnotes: When the Editor of TABLELAND TRAILS read this story

to his Unele Thaddeus Hinebaugh, several years ago, the latler pro-
vided the following comment about Accident, Md. as he remembered it
about the time that the “Noble Ten of Bear Creek” were living:
“Richard Fairall built the house in which your family lived during
W011d War 1. It is now occupied by Earl Ault)”
“The store of Richurd Fairall is now the Matthew Store—for

51
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The front dust cover depicts
Kaese’s Mill on Bear Creek near Acci-
dent. It was built by Henry August
Kaese in 1868. He was a skilled miller
Adese n 21295
and came with his wife Caroline to the
Accident district where he worked on
another mill along Bear Creek before
he built his mill. After his death, his
son, Henry August Kaese, Jr., took
over and operated the mill until his
death. The Honorable and Mrs. Clif-
ford Friend have owned and operated
the mill since 1930. Mrs. Friend is a
daughter of Henry A. Kaese, Jr. This
mill is the only gristmill still in opera-
tion in the county. Mr. Friend re-
cently restored the flume.

The pen and ink drawing was done
by Mrs. Adeline Sincell Ruckert on lo-
cation in 1972.

——m

McCLAIN PRINTING COMPARY

PARSONS, WIST VIEGINIA 26287
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FLOUR MILLS

Engle’s Mill was built in 1836 by
Samuel Engle, then owner of the
farm located on Bear Creek near the
present site of the State Fish Hatch-
ery. At that time there were seven
families—Engles and Swalps—Iliving
in log cabins. One cabin was used as
a church and school. About 1868 a
large plank house was built to be used
as a dwelling, a store, and wayside
inn, as the Bittinger-Accident High-
way was a main thoroughfare. The
graveyard nearby showed twelve
members of these families were
buried there. :

In 1889 the property was acquired
by Samuel A. Miller, who lived there
until his death in 1928.

After the- flour mill was in oper-
ation, a German man and wife, Henry
and Caroline Kaese, operated the mill
for Mr. Engle and also helped to
clear a farm. Henry Kaese came to
Accident District as a skilled miller.
Maple syrup was made in a primi-
tive way. The elder Mr. Kaese once
told Mr. Ralph Miller that he began
in America by working twelve hours
a day on the farm and six hours a
day more in the flour mill at the rate
of six dollars per month.

Engle’s Mill was operated last by
Silas Miller, who operated it until
approximately the time of the death
of his father, and has since been
destroyed.

During the ’60’s a second flour mill
was erected just below the site of
Engle’s Mill on Big Bear Creek. This
mill was owned and ope-ated by the
elder Henry Kaese until his death,
then by his son, Henry, wuntil his
death and is still in operation.

The exact date of the building of
Weller’s Flour Mill is obscure, but
we do know that it was built by Jere-
miah Durst and 2 man named Meese.
This mill was located on the South
Branch of Bear Creek about a half
mile below where U. S. Route 219
crosses this stream. In recent years

Q
Sisler’s sawmill has been Operating
near the former site of Weller's My
Mr. Weller, who owned the prop.
erty and had the mill built, way the
grandfather of Harry, Joe, and Wal
ter Collier, and gave the mill jt,
name. Peter Reitz and Joe Garber
were among those who operated the
mill. Weller’s Mill was closed abogt
1894.

o
O

LUMBER
About 1894, J. W. McCullough, of
Friendsville, Maryland, and H. R

Clark, of Loch Haven, Pennsylvanla,
erected a sawmill at the junction of
Big and Little Bear Creek, using a
wooden tramway to convey logs te
mill. They began as Clark and Me-
Cullough and later became the Bear
Creek Lumber company.

In 1898 Walter. S. Taylor built »
large band mill at Friendsville and
about twenty miles of narrow-gauge
railroad up Big Bear Creek over
Negro Mountain and across Meadow
Mountain almost to Swanton, trans
porting about one and a half millios
feet of logs yearly for approximately
six years. Clark and McCullough re
moved the hardwood, and the Mes-
dow Mountain Company the spruce o8
the same railroad. The road was
taken up to Engle’s Mill and thes
taken over by David and Jacob Stat
ler, of Johnstown, Pennsyl‘mnh
known as Johnstown Planing M
Company, who operated a mill #
Friendsville and the North Branch o
Bear Creek railroad for about foef
years.

At the same time the Cart®
Brothers, known as the Lock Haref
Lumber Company, operated
South Branch railroad with a mill 8¢
Friendsville. The railroad was tak®®
up er;tirely. J. . McCullO"‘"
George D. Browning, and W ’
Savage also used this same l‘alu'?"
in a lumbering operation extendi
from Rock Lick to the Upper reach®
of the South Branch of Bear
in the Weller’s Flour Mill area.

THE Gi

—
¥IST AND FAIRALL FAMILI
8ir Thomas West, an Engl

: g;(ht, was the emigrant ancestor
@ West family of Accident, Garri
Caunty. He was sent to Virginia |
$peen Elizabeth as treasurer of th

p;{ng on the voyage, he was su
®eded by his two sons, John, who i
; {ed the title, and Charles. Jose;
st came to Prince George’s cou
. from Virginia. He married Sarz
Elleary and lived at “Locust Grove
Frederick County.
4 Captain Truman West, grandson
h West, was born in 1800, an
ried Susanna Johnson, cousin «
“frst Governor Thomas Johnsor
“# Maryland. They settled in a par
__‘;_Anegany County, which is nos
aqret County, in 1832, near Acci
,‘gg’;:nd called their home Woodlan
3w This farm included at leas
.of what are now the farms o
- Miller, B. O. Aiken, Frank Speai
Willis Silber.
ﬁ?hin Truman West was a firs
h«ff of Governor Francis Thomas
®.0wned a farm at Frankville ir
County. Governor Thomas
W %ent as ambassador to Peru and
ﬁg}'&nmm brought the first Peru-
2 ¢p to Garrett County.
 large West plantation was one
: “,go'« which came to be divided
s‘,&"“ﬂrﬂ Small farms at the time
.Germ.an immigration to the
==¢ egion. )
£ 2aader Fairall, who was born
Qﬁg@ and educated in Charles
Gz 5> Marylang,

k: W just before the
5 ~3= 2 married Elinor West,

- ﬁ‘}d_lughter of Captain Truman
—,.h._';‘?mdland Farm
=Y Alralls were of English-Irish

iy

&%;ﬂhrge family, the five sisters |
- y .famous for their beauty.

married Richard West; Mary,

. €Y, of Grantsville; Rachel, |

"tx@ﬁ&rﬁmer Carr, of Cumberland;

B tett, Dr, g,
‘xfthnd, H. Bartlett, of,
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST G-II-B-024

MAGI #1201127914
NR

- INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

HBINAME

HISTDRIC

AND/OR COMMDN
Kaese Mill

BElLocATION

STREET & NUMBER

Fish Hatchery Road, South side,

approximately 1000 feet east of Rt, 219 and 2 miles

ciTy, Town NOXth O Ac¢cident

CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT

Accident X VICINITY OF Maryland 6th
STATE CDUNTY
Marvland Garrett County
EXCLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
—DISTRICT —PUBLIC Xoccurien —AGRICULTURE —MUSEUM
KBUILDING(S) XPRIVATE —UNOCCUPIED XCOMMERCIAL __PARK
—STRUCTURE __BOTH —WDRK IN PRDGRESS —EDUCATIONAL —-PRIVATE RES!DENCE
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE —ENTERTAINMENT __RELIGIOUS
—DBJECT —IN PRDCESS —YES: RESTRICTED —GOVERNMENT —_SCIENTIFIC
- —BEING CONSIDERED — YES: UNRESTRICTED XINDUSTRIAL — TRANSPORTATION
éND —MILITARY — DTHER
NAME

Nelle Kaese Friend

Telephone #:

STREET & NUMBER
Fish Hatchery Road

CITY. TOWN S1aTE, Zip code
Accident X VICINITY OF Maryland 21520

[EILOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION Liber :

COURTHOUSE. Folio #:

REGISTRY OF DEEDS,ETC.  Garrett County Courthouse

STREET & NUMBER

Third and Alder Streets
CITY. TOWN STATE

Oakland

Maryland 21550

'BAREPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE
None

DATE

—FEDERAL _STATE __CDUNTY —LDCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
— SURVEY RECORDS

CITY. TDWN

STATE




DESCRIPTION G -1-£-024

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED X UNALTERED XORIGINAL SITE
26000 __RUINS __ALTERED __MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Kaese Mill, constructed in 1868, is a 2-story frame water-powered
grist mill located north of Accident on Bear Creek, It is powered by
a 20-horsepower iron overshot wheel manufactured by the Fitz Water
Wheel Co., Hanover, PA. The wheel is 16 feet in diameter and is
located on the south elevation.

The mill rests on a concrete and stone foundation and measures
3 bays by 4 bays. The walls are covered with weatherboard siding
and the gable roof with standing seam metal. There is a central
entrance on the facade,north elevation,which opens directly onto
Fish Hatchery Road. There are central openings at the second story
and attic level of the facade through which materials were hoisted
into the mill by a hoist above at the gable peak. There 1is another entrance
at the north end of the west elevation. The windows are 6/6 sash.,

A mill race runs from Bear Creek, east of the mill, under Fish
Hatchery Road and directs water into a wooden flume which begins 300
feet east of the mill, The flume was once supported by a wooden
frame--the present owner has replaced this with a fieldstone base.

The mill, still marginally used by the present owner to grind buck-
wheat, retains its 19th and early 20th century equipment: stone burrs
with straight furrows, made in France (according to the owner), steel
rollers, sifters, a gyrator, a bolting reel, grain chutes, hoppers,

a balance scale, and the previously mentioned Fitz Water Wheel. Leather
belts have been replaced with rubber ones.,

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



Bl SIGNIFICANCE G&-I-B-0aY

" PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC ~ _ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC  __COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  _RELIGION
—1400-1499 XARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAW —SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS —LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 —ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART __ENGINEERING —MusIC —THEATER
X1800-1899 2coMMERCE —EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  _ PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS XiNOUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT —OTHER (SPECIFY)
—INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 1868 BUILDER/ARCHITECT Henry August Kaese, Sr.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Kaese Mill is significant as the only water powered mill still in
operation in Garrett County. Also, it is unaltered, in good operating
condition, and displays a virtual museum of mill machinery inside.

It was constructed in 1868 by Henry August Kaese, an itinerant
skilled miller from Germany. He and his wife, Caroline Newmiller,
immigrated to this country in the 1850s,” He apparently operated grist
mills in West Virginia and at Borden Shaft, Maryland before settling
in the Accident district.

In the Accident area, he worked as the miller at Englek M:'Lll,3
(which once stood % mile east of Kaese Mill), and cleared fammland.
In 1868, he built Kaese Mill which became a competitor of Engle's Mill,
not only commercially but politically. Both communities served as U.S.
post offices, but the location changed depending on which party was in
power: Kaese Mill, when the Democrats were in power and Engle's Mill,
when the Republicans were in power.

Kaese's son, Henry Jr. (b. 1862), continued to operate the mill
until his death in 1930 at which time his daughter, Nelle, and her
husband, Senator Clifford Friend, moved to the property. Senator
Friend has operated the mill since that time.

According to Senator Friend, Henry Kaese, Sr. first built a water-
powered sawmill on the floodplain below, southeast of the mill from
which lumber was cut for the mill and a dwelling. 1In ¢.1900, Henry,

Jr. replaced the original wooden wheel with the iron Fitz wheel and
added the steel rollers for grinding wheat.

Senator Friend has maintained the mill since 1930. Repairs have
been made to the foundation, the millrace/flume, the interior with the
addition of cornmer bracings, and the Fitz wheel has been painted
periodically. This wheel was originally covered.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY




[EJMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Friend , Senater Clifford, Interview October 1981.

The Glades Star. '"The Name Accident". Vol, 2, No, 6, June 30, 1951,

Hoye, Charles E. "Engle Family." Garrett County History of Pioneer
Families. (Series of Newspaper articles). Oakland: Mountain Democrat,
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY March 7, 1935,

EDIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY
[E]1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE

Donna Ware, Historian

ORGANIZATION " DATE

Maryland Historical Trust/Bureau of Mines October 1981
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE ~

Shaw House 21 State Circle
CITY OR TOWN:- 3 STAYE

Annapolis Maryland 21401

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

PS- 1108



G-II-B-024

Kaese Mill
(Continuation - #8)

Footnotes
1

Charles E. Hoye, "Engle Family," Garrett County History of Pioneer
Families. Oakland: Mountain Democrat, March 7, 1935.

2
Ibid.

3
The Glades Star, "The Name Accident", Vol. 2, No. 6, June 30, 1951, p. 90.

4
Hoye, March 7, 1935.

5
Hoye and Senator Clifford Friend.

(Continuation - #9)

Lacoste, Ken and Young, Kay. Fieldnotes from Maryland Geological Survey's
Coal Basin Archeological Survey, June 23, 1980.
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Accident

USGS 7.5 Minute Series

Fish Hatchery Road, South side,
approximately 1000 feet east of Rt
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219 and 2 miles north of Accident
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